SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 1, 2014
1:40 p.m

1: 40: 23 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:40 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Rudy Vonl mhof, President, Delta Leasing, LLC, Tom Wi ght,
Staff, Representative Mke Chenault; Representative M ke
Chenault; Representative Lance Pruitt; Dirk Craft, Staff,
Representative Lance Pruitt; Rober t Br ean, Di rector,
Research and Rural Developnent, Alaska Housing Finance
Cor porati on (AHFC);

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Matt Fonder, Director, Tax Division, Departnent of Revenue;
Jon Cook, Chief Financial Oficer, A rport Equipnent
Rentals Inc., Fairbanks; Randy Johnson, Tyler Rental,
Ket chi kan; Louise Bray, Shnitzer Steel, Tacoma, Washi ngton;
Phil Steyer, Chugach Electrical Association, Anchorage;
John MacKi nnon, Executive Director, Alaska Association of
Cener al Contractors, Anchor age; Al Barrette, Sel f,
Fai r banks.

SUMVARY



SB 178 PASSENGER VEHI CLE RENTAL TAX

SB 178 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

CSHB 297( FI N)
HOVE ENERGY RATI NG SYSTEMB

CSHB 297(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

CSHB 305( FI N)
JUNK DEALER & METAL SCRAPPER LI CENSI NG

CSHB 305(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

#sb178
SENATE BILL NO. 178

"An Act relating to the application of the passenger
vehicle rental tax; and providing for an effective
date."

1:42: 13 PM

Senator Hof fman inquired how the passenger vehicle renta
tax would be inplenented, particularly for vehicles rented
for use only on the North Sl ope.

MATT FONDER, DI RECTOR, TAX DIVISION, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
(via teleconference), responded that all vehicles on the
North Slope, rented for a period of at |east 28 days, would
be exenpt fromthe tax.

Senator Hoffrman surm sed that a vehicle rented for 21 days
woul d be subject to the tax.

M. Fonder replied in the affirmative.

Co- Chair Meyer understood that vehicles that were purchased
on the North Slope did not need to be registered and were
not subject to a registration tax.

M. Fonder responded that the question was not under the
per-vi ew of the Departnment of Revenue.

1: 43: 58 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 04/01/14 1:40 P. M



Senator A son inquired if Co-Chair Myer referencing the
road systemthat was mai ntai ned by the North Sl ope Borough.

Co- Chair Meyer responded in the affirmative.

Senator O son explained that the North Sl ope Borough did
not require the tax on roads that it owned and naintai ned,
but that not all roads were included; the Dalton Hi ghway,
for exanple, was part of the state system and would require
paynent of a registration tax.

Co- Chair Meyer thought that roads at Prudhoe Bay, Kuparuk
and Al pine were all exenpt from having registered vehicles.

Senat or O son pointed out that those were private roads.

1: 44: 33 PM

Senat or Hof fman inquired whether the legislation applied to
all the vehicles that were rented regardless of whether
they were driven on borough or state roads.

M. Fonder believed that there was a provision in existing
statute that pertained to driving on a public right-of-way.
He thought that if a vehicle was rented in Anchorage for a
three week period, traveled up the Dalton H ghway to
Deadhorse, the passenger vehicle rental tax would be
appl i ed regardl ess of the roads taken.

Senat or Hof f man request ed t hat DOR clarify t he
interpretation of the | aw and get back to him

1: 46: 08 PM

Co-Chair Meyer thought that if the vehicle was used on
private roads on the North Slope, the Departnent of Motor
Vehi cl es did not require vehicle registration.

Vice-Chair Fairclough referenced a prior fiscal note which
had proposed a higher cost due to retroactivity. She noted
that the current fiscal note before that was zero.

M. Fonder replied that the original fiscal note had
addressed legislation that had a retroactivity of
approximately 10 years; the burden would have been on the
departnment to ensure that any taxes paid during that
period, that should not have been paid, would be refunded.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 04/01/14 1:40 P. M



The current draft of the bill had an immedi ate effective
date, which had resulted in the new fiscal note.

1:48:19 PM

Vi ce- Chair Fairclough understood that individual tax payers
had paid vehicle rental tax in the past.

M. Fonder responded in the affirmative. He and added that
the tax was paid through the rental conpani es and subm tted
to the departnment on a quarterly basis.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough asked if the proposition of
retroactivity would nean that the state would be forced to
seek i ndividual tax payers, rather than the renta
entities.

M . Fonder said yes.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough asserted that the tax should be fair
and equitable and that the funds from the tax should be
used to nmaintain state roads.

M . Fonder agreed.

M. Fonder returned to Senator Hof fman's question regarding
the public right-of-way. He stated that current statue
defined a passenger vehicle in AS 28.90.990 as a vehicle
that was driven, or noved on a highway, or other public
right-of-way in the state.

Co- Chair Meyer OPENED public testinony.

1: 52: 03 PM

JON COCK, CH EF FI NANCI AL  OFFI CER, Al RPORT EQUI PMENT
RENTALS [INC., FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in
support of SB 178. He pointed out that the bill addressed
several unintended consequences of the original vehicle tax
| egislation. He believed that issues regarding the renta

tax on the North Sl ope should not be addressed in the bill.
He noted that rentals under 28 days out of Deadhorse would
be subject to the tax. He asserted that his business was
| ocated on a private road system should not be subject to
the tax. He believed that the DOR had no right to inpose
the tax on the North Sl ope.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 04/01/14 1:40 P. M



1: 59: 05 PM

RUDY VONI WVHOF, PRESIDENT, DELTA LEASING LLC, spoke in
support of SB 178. He relayed that his conpany had been
corresponding with DOR on the issue since 2010. In 2013 the
departnment had asked the conpany to file returns on the tax
and the conpany had responded that they did not need to pay
the tax. He noted that he had witten a letter to the
departnment detailing the 2010 correspondence (copy on
file). He said that on Novenber 2, 2013 his Prudhoe Bay and
Anchorage offices were the subject of a raid by the
Department of Revenue the results of which were that DOR
confiscated 70 boxes of files and conputers. The files had
not been returned. He opined that BP had witten a letter
to DOR explaining that the DW did not consider the greater
Prudhoe Bay area taxable for vehicle registration; a map of
operations was included with the letter that detailed where
state mai ntenance began and ended on the Dalton H ghway. He
shared that the checkpoints between public and private
roads were nonitored by strong security and required badges
for access. He expressed concern with the current version
of the bill and opined that DOR maintai ned possession of
the files confiscated in 2013.

2: 06: 24 PM

M. Vonlnmhof related that his conmpany had never felt that
the tax was applicable to its custonmers and had never
col l ected the tax.

2:08: 53 PM

Co-Chair Meyer assuned that M . Vonl mhof's  busi ness
oper ated out of Deadhorse.

M. Vonlnof replied in the affirmative.

2:09: 06 PM

Senator O son wondered if the security guards at the
checkpoi nts were arned.

M. Vonlnof replied that he was unsure.

2:09: 54 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 04/01/14 1:40 P. M



Senat or Hof f man spoke to an intent letter and asked whet her
the contents of the letter were neant to be included in the
| egi sl ati on.

M. Vonlnof believed that an intent letter had been sl ated
to be drafted into the legislation, but that it had not
been witten into the current version.

2:10: 24 PM

Vice-Chair Fairclough inquired whether the electronic
informati on seized in the raid had been returned.

M. Vonl mhof stated that the conpany maintained the server,
which was inaged. He said that front desk conputers and
technician conputers in the maintenance facility had not
been seized. He relayed that the hard drives of three
conput ers had been returned in January 2014.

Vice-Chair Fairclough probed whether when the conputers
were seized, the conpany had been able to perform a back-up
and if the business had been totally disabled by the
sei zure

M. Vonlmhof replied that the IT conversion had been
unexpected. He said that nost of the infornmation resided on
a server and that his business was allowed to keep its
server. Enpl oyees personal downl oads on work conputers had
not been returned.

2:12: 31 PM

M. Vonlnof reiterated that he supported the current bill.

Co-Chair Meyer believed that the current bill would stil
charge a tax on private roads on the North Sl ope.

M. Vonlmhof responded that he was surprised at the
Department of Revenue's position on Prudhoe Bay. He
expressed concern for that aspect of the |egislation.

2:13: 25 PM

Co- Chair Meyer asked whether the conpany |eased vehicles
for longer than a 30 day peri od.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 04/01/14 1:40 P. M



M. Vonl mhof responded that it varied. He offered that the
vast majority of business operations were |long-term | eases,
meaning nore than 6 nonths. He opined that there were
out standi ng i ssues between industry and DOR on the topic.

2:15: 36 PM

RANDY J OHNSQN, TYLER RENTAL, KETCHI KAN (via
tel econference), spoke in support of SB 178. He expressed
reservations regarding truck rentals on non-public roads
and support for a retroactivity clause. He related that his
conpany had never received notice on the tax since its
inception in 2004 and as a result had never collected the
tax from its custoners. He understood that nost of the
vehicl e rental conpani es had received notice of the tax and
that he could only assune that the reason it was not
notified was because it was not originally the intent to
tax busi nesses |ike Tyler Rental.

2:19: 11 PM

Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED public testinony.

Senat or Hof f man questi oned whether the sponsor had intended
that the legislation would not apply to certain vehicles.

2:19:53 PM

Senator Bishop stated that the sponsor's intent was to
clarify that Prudhoe Bay woul d be exenpt fromthe tax.

2:20: 21 PM

Senator Hoffman offered that if the DOR thought that the
intent was that the Prudhoe Bay should be taxed, there
needed to be clarification.

Senator O son asked whether only vehicles rented on state
mai nt ai ned roads shoul d be taxed.

Senator Bishop noted that the original intent had been for
passenger vehicles during the sumrer tourist season and
that it had never been to target rentals in Prudhoe Bay or
remote mne sites.

2:21:24 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 04/01/14 1:40 P. M



Senator O son inquired if the bill's original intent had
been to tax people on private mning roads in Southeast
Al aska.

Senat or Bi shop responded that it had not been the intent to
do so.

Senator A son stressed the need for further clarification
in order to stave future raids on small busi nesses.

2:22: 15 PM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough asserted that ignorance of the |aw
was not defensible in court and that it would be inpossible
for the state to notify every single business of every |aw.

Co-Chair Meyer thought that his staff needed to work with
Senat or Bishop's staff in order to craft a conprehensive
piece of legislation. He believed that the 28 day rental
peri od was wor kabl e.

Vi ce- Chair Fai r cl ough ur ged conmuni cation wth the
Departnment of Law in order to draft |anguage that spoke to
the North Slope but also addressed nmining operations in
Sout heast Al aska.

Co-Chair Meyer said that DW already knew which roads were
private or public.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough believed that the work would need to
be done by both DOT and DW.

2:25: 55 PM

SB 178 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

2:26: 00 PM
AT EASE

2:28: 03 PM
RECONVENED

#hb305
CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 305(FI N)

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 04/01/14 1:40 P. M



“"An Act relating to the records of nmetal scrappers;
repealing the requirenent that a junk dealer or neta
scrapper obtain a license; and providing for an
effective date.”

TOM WRI GHT, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE M KE CHENAULT, read from
a sponsor statenent:

HB 305 as originally introduced proposed to repeal a
pre-statehood requirenent for junk dealers and netal
scrappers to obtain a state license. Research could
not identify any licenses which were issued under the
statute and therefore, it was felt the statute served
no public purpose and should be repeal ed. Al though the
original intent of the legislation was to elimnate an
unneeded |aw from the books, the process led to the
identification of an area where Alaska state |aw was
deficient and needed i nprovenent.

The junk dealer statute was discovered during
di scussions by a working group of —contractors,
utilities and scrap netal dealers |ooking for ways to
deter netal theft in Alaska. Due to the higher value
of metals such as copper, netal theft has been
i ncreasing nationw de. However, Alaska remains as the
only state without a |law specifically targeting netal
theft.

Thieves often target wutilities, construction sites,
and other locations wth significant volumes of
copper. In sone cases, the value of the scrap neta
stolen pales in conparison to the damage done by
thieves. For wutilities, theft can result in life
threatening situations, service outages for nmany
cust oners, and be very costly to repair. For
construction sites, significant costs and project
del ays can result fromtheft.

The main goal of netal theft laws is to provide |aw
enforcement with additional tools to track down neta

thieves as well as provide a deterrent to the crine by
cl osing down avenues to sell stolen property. In many
cases, other states have adopted very conprehensive

laws, which are <costly to inplenent as well as
burdensonme to businesses. This bill takes a different
approach. Through the input of a those inpacted
(utilities, contractors, |aw enforcenent, and scrap

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 04/01/14 1:40 P. M



netal dealers), the legislation inplenents those tools
the working group felt would be nost effective in a
manner which add as little burden as possi bl e.

Specifically, the bill adds new recording Kkeeping
requirenents on the sale of scrap netal. Basic
information includes date, tine, location, and value
of the netal as well as information about the seller
including the name, address, driver's |icense nunber,
and vehicle plate nunber. The legislation also
requires the seller to sign a statement that the neta
is not stolen.

2:31: 43 PM

Co-Chair Meyer clarified that the commttee was working
with version R of the bill.

M. Wight replied in the affirmative.

Senat or Dunl eavy understood that the bill would not prevent
soneone fromselling wire or nmetal to sonmeone el se.

M. Wight replied that it would not.

Senat or Dunl eavy thought that there could be a way around
t he | aw

M. Wight agreed. He surnmised that there were ways to
circunvent nearly any | aw.

2:33: 01 PM

Co-Chair Meyer asked how many junk dealers or scrappers
there were in the state.

M. Wight deferred the question to available experts in
the field.

Co- Chair Meyer wondered if a scrappers/junk dealer |icense
was the sane as business |icense.

M. Wight replied in the affirmative.

2: 33: 33 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 04/01/14 1:40 P. M



LOUI SE BRAY, SHNITZER STEEL, TACOWA, WASHI NGTON (via
tel econference), spoke in support of HB 305. She felt that
the bill was a first small step to conbat netal theft and
to provide additional tools for law enforcement to track
thieves. She believed that there would always be non-
conpliant dealers, but once the law was inplenented those
deal ers woul d be easier to | ocate.

2:36: 47 PM

PH L STEYER, CHUGACH ELECTRI CAL ASSOCI ATI ON, ANCHORACGE (Vi a
tel econference), testified in support of HB 305. He stated
that the Chugi ak El ectrical Association had been the victim
of theft and property damage. He said that the cost of
repairs for the damage and |ost business was expensive
i nconveni ent.

2:39:19 PM

JOHN MACKI NNON, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA ASSCClI ATI ON OF
GENERAL CONTRACTCRS, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of HB 305. He stated that the Al aska

Associ ation  of CGener al Contractors' hoped that t he
legislation would nmake to nore difficult for thieves to
sell scrap netal wthout adding nore regulations or

requi renents for deal ers.

2:41:17 PM

AL BARRETTE, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), spoke
against the reporting requirenents in HB 305. He questioned
the constitutionality of the portion of the bill that would
require that records be kept available for inspection by
| aw enforcenent during normal business hours. He opined
that he should have to collect data or file burdensone
paperwork for the sake of public safety.

2:44: 27 PM

Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED public testinony.

Senator Bishop inquired whether the netal scrappers and
deal ers had been involved in crafting the bill.

M. Wight replied yes.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 04/01/14 1:40 P. M



Vice-Chair Fairclough queried to what extent the record
keeping proposed in the legislation would inconvenience
busi ness owners.

2:46: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT, replied that it was not the
sponsor's intent make the reporting any nore burdensone
than what was considered good business practice. He
asserted that it would be best for businesses to keep
accurate records. He noted that if enforcenent canme into a
pawn shop and found that things were stolen, the itens were
confiscated and given back to the rightful owner, resulting
in a loss for the store owner; proper record keeping offers
the proprietor the ability to recoup the costs from whoever
pawned the item He understood that there would be nore
paperwork and acknow edged the concerns; however, it was
better business practice to keep the information regarding
custoners. He stressed that the legislation was an attenpt
to address theft concerns in the nopst innocuous way
possi bl e.

2:48:49 PM

Vice-Chair Fairclough questioned the reasoning behind
repealing the licensing requirenent of junk dealers and
nmet al scrappers.

M. Wight replied that it was handed over as an arcane |aw
that pre-dated statehood. He cited the Legislative Research
Services Research Brief (copy on file):

Because the |licensing of junk dealers and netal
scrappers involved the paynent of fees, the Departnent
of Revenue inherited the provision through passage of
duties from territorial offices to the newy created
state offices.

M. Wight furthered that the law was not enforced by DOR
and that the issue was now the per view of the Departnent
of Comerce, Comunity and Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED)
under their business |icense division.

Vice-Chair Fairclough stated if the nunber of neta

scrappers/deal ers was unknown, and there were increasing
i nstances of nmetal scrappers buying stolen nerchandi se,

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 04/01/14 1:40 P. M



then it would be in the state's best interest to require
then to hold a |icense under DOR

Representative Chenault replied that the state did know how
many there were and that they were all [licensed under
DCCED. He said that the original intent of the |egislation
was to terminate the section pertaining to DOR and not
DCCED.

2:51:43 PM

CSHB 305(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi der ati on.

2:51:54 PM
AT EASE

2:52:20 PM
RECONVENED

#hb297
CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 297(FIN)

"An Act recognizing the Alaska Housing Finance
Corporation as the authorizing agency to approve hone
energy rating systens for the state; and providing for
an effective date."

2:52:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LANCE PRUI TT, introduced HB 297. He stated
that the Al aska Finance Housing Corporation (AHFC) was the
state's hone energy rating system authorizing agency for
t he purpose of approving hone energy rating systens in the
state. He relayed that the bill sought to protect the
state's investnment via AHFC in developing its own rating
system AkWarm He shared that the AkWarm system had been
in use since 1996, and was designed specifically for the
unique climate and environnment of Alaska. The bill would
hi ghl i ght that AHFC was the authorizing agency in charge of
approvi ng Hone Energy Rating Systens (HERS)

2:54:19 PM

Senator Dunleavy inquired whether and authorizing agency
was currently recognized.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 04/01/14 1:40 P. M



Representative Pruitt said no.

Co-Chair Meyer noted the zero fiscal note. He inquired
whet her there were federal funds available to assist this
program

DI RK CRAFT, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE LANCE PRU TT, responded
that the intent of the bill was to protect any potential
federal funds.

2:56: 25 PM

ROBERT BREAN, DI RECTOR, RESEARCH AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT,
ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE CORPORATION (AHFC), added that the
corporation did not receive additional federal funds as a
result of exercising the program but by formula AHFC
recei ved approximately 300 thousand dollars from the United
States Departnment of Energy. The corporation anticipated
that to use any federal funds on an analysis of any rating
systens introduced that m ght benefit the state.

2:57: 09 PM

Senator Bi shop wondered whether AHFC would interface wth
the Cold Cdinmte Research Housing in Fairbanks as it
devel oped the regul ati ons.

M. Brean replied that it was possible. He said that AHFC
had extended a great deal of tine and energy devel opi ng the
current software rating system He relayed that the current
system had weather regines and weather systens built in as
wel | as construction techniques in the state. He concl uded
that AHFC planned on working closely with Cold dinmate
Housi ng on the project.

Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED public testinony.

2:59: 07 PM

HB 297(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi der ati on.

#
ADJ QURNVENT
3: 00: 05 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 3:00 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 04/01/14 1:40 P. M



